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ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO RFP-20-HHL-003 
SEALED OFFERS 

FOR 
 REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 820 ISENBERG STREET PROPERTY 

 

AMENDMENTS TO THE RFP 

(None) 

PRE-SUBMITTAL MEETING 

The following documents from the Pre-Submittal Meeting are attached. 

Handout 

Sign-in sheets 

Responses to questions received prior to the Pre-Submittal Meeting 

Responses to questions asked at the Pre-Submittal Meeting 

REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATION 

Questions received after the Pre-Submittal Meeting 

1. We would be using Low Income Housing Tax Credits, State Rental Housing Revolving 
Funds and other sources to finance the project.  All the sources we use require us to abide by 
Federal Fair Housing Law.  Before going any further we need to know where we can find the 
references that exempt DHHL from Federal Fair Housing. 

The attached letter from HUD confirms that “the Fair Housing Act does not prohibit the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission from imposing those conditions contained in the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission Act, 1920.” 

2. In regards to the potential of securing project based Section 8, could you please explain 
exactly how this would work? 

Project based Section 8 funds would be granted by DHHL from our NAHASDA 
appropriations. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Documents from the Pre-Submittal Meeting 

HUD letter to DHHL (August 6, 1999) regarding Fair Housing Act 

DHHL Affordable Housing Credits Policy 
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PrePrePrePre----Proposal ConferenceProposal ConferenceProposal ConferenceProposal Conference    
9:00 a.m., Thursday, August 15, 2019 

 

Scope of Work:    
Demolition of the existing structure; design, construction, financing, 
ownership, management, operation, and maintenance of a multi-family 
residential rental facility with potential for ground floor commercial or 
other uses. 

Project Goals 
Medium term rentals targeting DHHL beneficiaries below 100% of AMI 
Other potential uses:  kupuna; student/faculty housing 

Site Information 
Former Bowl-o-Drome (+/- 1.9 acres) 
Design to City & County BMX-3 Mixed Use zoning standards 
Hazardous materials 
Historic items 

Development Process 
Enter into DA and ground lease for 65 years (maximum) 
Environmental Impact Statement 
Environmental Assessment (NEPA) 
National Historic Preservation Act, Chapter 106 Consultation  

General Requirements 
General Excise Tax exempt  
Subject to Department of Labor and Industrial Relations and Davis Bacon 

prevailing wages and salaries 
Section 103D-310 HRS – DHHL shall verify through Hawaii Compliance 

Express  
Chapter 103B HRS – Employment of State Residents on Construction 

Projects 
Proposal Security required – at least five percent (5%) of the estimated 

cost of construction 

Scoring Criteria 
Offeror’s qualifications, experience, financial strength, 
creativity, and track record in multi-family rental development 
projects of a similar nature 

20 

Proposed development budget 20 
Proposed operating budget, including rental rates 20 
Conceptual designs 15 
Proposed means of financing 15 
Green building program 5 
Proposed operating program 5 
Unusual or unacceptable terms and conditions (potential penalty 
of up to 10 points). 

 

TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS 100 



 
 
 

Deadlines 
Final deadline for written inquiries – September 27, 2019 
Respond to questions/ Issue addenda – October 4, 2019 
Intent to Submit Offer – October 8, 2019 
Offer submittal – October 18, 2019, 2:00 pm 
 Deliver to Hale Kalanianaole, 91-5420 Kapolei Parkway 

Responses to inquiries received through August 12, 2019 

Additional Questions  

Site Inspection:  following pre-proposal conference  
 

======================================== 

DHHL Contacts 
 

RFP: Darrell Ing 
Telephone: 620-9276 
Fax: 620-9299 
e-mail: darrell.h.ing@hawaii.gov 
 
Site Inspection: Allen Yanos 
Telephone: 620-9460 
Fax: 620-9479 
e-mail: allen.g.yanos@hawaii.gov 
 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1879 

 Honolulu, HI 96805



 
 
 

 















RFP-20-HHL-003 

REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 820 ISENBERG STREET PROPERTY 

Responses to questions received prior to the Pre-Submittal Meeting 

• RFP states Development Agreement for 65-year land lease.   
 

o Is land to be lease at $1 per year?  Yes, ground lease rent will be nominal. 
o Can lease be extended to 75 years if required for financing?  No.  If required by 

financing plan, please so note in Section H. on Offer Form OF-2. 
 

• RFP indicates developer participation in EIS approval process.   
 

o Who will be responsible for preparation and ultimate submittal?  Developer shall 

prepare the EIS.  DHHL shall be the proposing agency.   
 

• RFP enumerates target demographic specific to eligible native Hawaiians being 
defined as individuals having at least 50% Hawaiian blood quantum and his/her 
qualified successors but also denotes providing independent living facilities for 
kupuna, student or faculty housing as well as homeless beneficiaries.   
 
o Do all residents need to satisfy blood quantum requirements?  No, only the 

renter needs to meet the blood quantum requirement. 
o If yes, can this requirement be waived should developer be unable to fill available 

units? No. 
  

• RFP indicates proposal security deposit / bid bond pin an amount equal to at least 5% 
of estimated construction cost. 

 
o What is the purpose of this security since no MOA has yet been negotiated or 

signed?  This is required by HRS §103D-323. 

 

• RFP references AG 103D General Conditions and DHHL General Conditions.  
 

o Which controls in event of conflict between the two documents?  DHHL 

Construction General Conditions  
 

 



RFP-20-HHL-003 

REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 820 ISENBERG STREET PROPERTY 

Responses to questions received at the Pre-Submittal Meeting 

August 15th, 2019, 9-10:30 AM - Japanese Cultural Center 

 

Q1:  Please provide the citation that requires a bid bond. 

 Response:  Bid security is required by Hawaii Revised Statutes Section 103D-323. 

Q2:  The BMX3 zoning code was discussed in the presentation, but can proposers also use the 201H 

guidelines for setbacks, heights, etc.? 201H projects often use those to get better units, space, etc.  

Response:  Proposals are free to consider use of the 201H process.  RFP Attachment 3, Offer 

Form OF-2, Part H Conditions / Exceptions, as well as other sections of your proposal, may be 

used to describe how the 201H process will be utilized.  Also, as mentioned during the 

presentation, there is an opportunity to build considerably more than 276 units on the site.  

Maximizing the density with taller buildings, smaller units, innovative/automated parking 

solutions, pre-fab/modular construction, etc., is encouraged.  CCH has indicated recently that a 

sewer connection application for 500 multi-family units would likely be approved for the site. 

Q3:  Budget – Development expenses is 20% of the score. Why is this important to DHHL?  

Response:  DHHL is looking for a thorough, well-thought-out plan that considers all possible 

costs and ascribes a reasonable cost estimate to each cost item.  The highest score in this 

category will not necessarily be the lowest cost/development budget; the score will be based on 

the quality of the cost estimate and its relationship to the financing plan and project feasibility. 

Q4:  Who will be scoring the proposals?  

Response:  There will be a selection committee of four from the Department. 

Q5:  Voyager Public Charter School - Considering the recent project in Kakaako that included residential 

mixed use with an educational facility – is there any opportunity to work in conjunction with a 

school?  [the speaker] is available to meet with anyone interested in developing a partnership. 

Response:  DHHL is open to suggestions and creative partnerships that could benefit keiki, and 

any other ideas that would enhance the project.  A school, services for the elderly, a homeless 

component, etc., will be welcomed. 

Q6:  Papakōlea Hawaiian Homes Association representatives are present and want to share priorities. 

The project is in the ahupua’a of Papakōlea. There is a desire from this Homestead Association for 

kupuna daycare, they are advocates for the project, and want to keep interests of the nearest 

Hawaiian community at the forefront of minds in the RFP process. There are several 

representatives present who are open to talk story with attendees so that this process keeps their 



interests in mind.  Another project of this type receives $1M per year so there is potential for 

profitability.  [The speaker] will leave her business card on the table.  

Q7:  Do Fair Housing Rules apply? Where can developers find the language excepting DHHL from this 

federal mandate?  

Response:  The Federal Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity has determined that “the 

Fair Housing Act does not prohibit the Hawaiian Homes Commission from imposing those 

conditions contained in the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920.”  Other requirements such 

as compliance with Americans with Disability Act do apply to the project. 

Q8:  Could Section 8 be made available for the project developer?  Is that project-based or tenant-based 

section 8?  

Response:  Yes, Section 8 project-based vouchers (PVB) for project development could be 

utilized with DHHL NAHASDA funds.  Section 8 tenant-based housing choice vouchers (HCV) 

issued by another agency may be accepted. 

Q9:  Is the 65-year ground lease in your charter?  Are optional lease extensions allowed? 

Response:  HAR, Section 10-4-1 refers to disposition of lands in accordance with HRS Chapter 

171.  HRS 171-36 limits lease terms to 65 years.  HAR 10-4-3 allows for a one-time lease 

extension of up to twenty years under certain conditions. 

Q10:  How do affordable housing credits tie in?  

Response:  (1) DHHL has a bank of affordable housing credits some of which could be made 

available to the developer.  (2)  The project would generate additional affordable housing 

credits that the developer could apply toward another project it develops or take to market and 

sell to other developers to provide equity for this project. The DHHL Affordable Housing Credits 

policy shall be attached to Addendum no. 1. 

Q11:  Would the city commit to affordable credits? 

Response:  Section 46-15.1 (b) requires the counties to issue credits to DHHL for each affordable 

housing unit produced.  DHHL shall follow up with the City and County of Honolulu on this 

matter. 

Q12:  Can developer work with consultants previously engaged by DHHL to complete environmental 

studies?  

Response:  Yes, but not until selection process is complete. 

Q13:  How does tenant selection work? 

Response:  Due to privacy laws, DHHL will make initial mailout to applicants on the Oahu Island-

wide Waitlist and refer interested beneficiaries to the developer certifying that they are 



qualified with respect to blood quantum. DHHL will also verify blood quantum of rental 

applicants who are not on the wait list.  Further eligibility, such as AMI and verification of ability 

to pay rent shall be the responsibility of the developer/operator.  

Q14:  Has DHHL confirmed there are enough potential tenants?  

Response:  There are 10k beneficiaries on the waitlist and DHHL feels confident that there will 

be an adequate number of potential tenants.  Beneficiaries who are not on the Waitlist may also 

be eligible to rent a unit in the project. 

Q15:  Has DHHL discussed how to bridge the gap of lease-up time delays? i.e., 6 months to lease up? 

Response:  No.  Although DHHL is confident that lease-up will move quickly (as noted above in 

Q14), the Department encourages proposers, as requested in Offer Form OF-2, Part A 

Development Program, to provide a marketing plan that addresses this and other leasing issues. 

Q16:  Will native Hawaiians be given first priority/preference in commercial leasing?  

Response: DHHL cannot make that a requirement.   The commercial component of the 

development is meant to provide revenues to help offset residential rents or operating 

expenses, as well as contribute to a more lively urban fabric.  This should be discussed in Offer 

Form OF-2, Part A Development Program. 

Q17:  Is Sandwich Isles communications required? 

Response:  Yes, at this time; but this is subject to change. 
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Department of Hawaiian Home Lands 
Affordable Housing Credits Policy 

 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Affordable Housing Credits Policy,  

Third Amendment, as approved by the Hawaiian Homes Commission on Dec. 13, 2011. 
 

I. Background  
The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (Department) has become one of the largest 
developers of affordable housing throughout the state of Hawaii. The Department's 
homestead projects are often developed in phases and increments due to the size of, and 
financing required for, such projects. The Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920, as 
amended (HHCA), authorizes the Department to enter into project developer agreements to 
develop available lands for homestead projects. Developer-financed projects allow the 
Department to award and deliver homesteads to beneficiaries at an accelerated rate. The 
Department will utilize affordable housing credits to attract more affordable homestead 
development opportunities.  

 
II. Purpose 

The following policies have been established to provide guidelines for determining the value 
of credits, clarifying terms and conditions under which affordable housing credits will be 
applied and subsequently transferred to other entities pursuant to Act 141, Session Laws of 
Hawai'i (SLH) 2009, which will be codified into the Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS) under 
section 46-15.1 (b). Act 141 is effective from July 1, 2009, until June 30, 2015.  
 
Under Act 141, counties are directed to issue credits on a one-for one basis to DHHL for 
existing and future projects. Under the law, the credits are transferable and can be applied 
anywhere within the same county in which the credits were earned.  
 

III. Effective Date  
These Policies shall take effect immediately upon approval and authorization by the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission. 

 
IV. Definitions  

A. "Credits" are affordable housing credits.  
 

B. "Homestead projects" are projects undertaken by the Department, where a "project" 
is as defined in HHCA §220.5(g).  
 

C. "Existing projects" are projects that were on-going at the time Act 141 became 
effective on July 1, 2009, and shall include:  
 
1. All contiguous phases and increments of construction within the project;  
2. All infrastructure construction for the benefit of the housing units within the 

project; and  
3. All types of house construction for which the Department has provided on-site 
infrastructure in an effort to make the house construction affordable. 
 

D. "Affordable housing credits" are credits issued by the various counties 
that may be applied toward the respective county's affordable or 
residential workforce housing requirements for a development. 
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E. “First Option” is defined as developer may have the opportunity to meet the terms set 
forth by the Department before the credits are made available to others. 

 
V. Authority Granted to the Chairman; Ratification by the Commission  

The Commission authorizes the Chairman of the Hawaiian Homes Commission (also the 
Director of the Department) to implement these policies and further authorizes the Chairman 
to enter into negotiations with public and private entities in furtherance of these policy 
objectives. The Commission authorizes the Chairman to deposit AHC cash payments in to 
the Hawaiian Homes Trust Fund (T-901-I) and to transfer into any other fund for public 
purposes deemed by the Commission to further the purposes of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission Act.  Five percent (5%), unless otherwise determined by the Commission, of 
cash deposits shall be transferred for the purposes stated in VI.E.  Agreements are subject 
to ratification by the Hawaiian Homes Commission and the Department will provide the 
Commission with periodic reports. 
  

VI. Policies 
The following policies establish fair and transparent methods by which the Department will 
request affordable housing credits from the counties and by which the Department will 
award and transfer such credits to other entities. 
 
A. Requests to Counties for Affordable Housing Credits 

  
The Department shall request affordable housing credits for the completed phases 
and/or increments (as of the date of enactment of Act 141) of existing projects and 
projects planned, designed or in construction during the effective period of Act 141. 
 

B. Award and Transfer of Affordable Housing Credits 
 
Activities Eligible for Requests for Affordable Housing Credits: 

 
1. Development of Housing Units for the Department. A developer who 

assumes the risk of financing, designing, marketing, and constructing the 
housing units within a project may, at the option of the Chairman, be 
afforded the first option to negotiate with the Department for award and 
transfer to such developer affordable housing credits on a one-for-one 
basis for each housing unit.  
 

2. Conveyance of Unimproved Land Suitable for Residential Homestead 
Purposes. A landowner who conveys to the Department at least one 
hundred (100) contiguous acres of land which is suitable for residential 
homestead purposes may be afforded the first option to negotiate with the 
Department for award and transfer to the landowner affordable housing 
credits, provided that the land area conveyed can be designed and 
subdivided to provide at least 1.5 times more lots than the amount of 
credits requested, with the number of lots determined according to the 
corresponding minimum lot size for each respective county as follows: 
 

i. Kauai..........10,000.0 sq. ft.;  
ii. Oahu ...........5,000.0 sq. ft.; 
iii. Maui ............7,500.0 sq. ft.; 
iv. Hawaii .........7,500.0 sq. ft., 
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provided that if the respective county's sewer system is not available to 
service the future lots, the minimum lot size shall be 10,000 sq. ft.  

  
3. Conveyance of Fully Improved Lots.  A landowner who conveys to the 

Department at least twenty-five (25) fully improved lots; provided that such 
lots have received final subdivision approval by the county, and the lots 
are free and clear of all liens, impact fees, and utility fees, may be afforded 
the first option to negotiate with the Department for award and transfer to 
the landowner affordable housing credits on a one-for-one basis for each 
lot which meets the corresponding minimum lot size for each respective 
county as follows: 

 
v. Kauai..........10,000.0 sq. ft.;  
vi. Oahu ...........5,000.0 sq. ft.; 
vii. Maui ............7,500.0 sq. ft.; 
viii. Hawaii .........7,500.0 sq. ft., 

 
C. Consideration for Award and Transfer of Affordable Housing Credits  

 
1. Valuation of credits:  The value of the credits shall be determined on a 

project-by-project basis.   
 

The valuation of credits is affected by the economic cycle, housing 
demand, developer’s inventories, county requirements for affordable or 
workforce units, county ‘fee in lieu’ formula’s, availability of credits from 
other sources, availability of future credits and other factors such as the 
adjusted median income levels for the area.   
 
The negotiations with the developer for a specific project may include 
shared risks for financing, marketing, cost fluctuations, infrastructure 
construction, land acquisition and development and buyer capacity. 

 
2. Commission May Establish Additional Factors. The Commission may 

establish additional factors that may be considered in adjusting the 
consideration to be received by the Department for the award and transfer 
of affordable housing credits.  

 
D. Public Auction of Department Credits. 

 
1. Any and all affordable housing credits may be disposed of by public 

auction through competitive sealed proposals to obtain the best offer.   
 
           2.     Notwithstanding the above provisions of this section, the Department may hold 

Department credits in a reserve to be used for consideration as well as awards for 
land conveyances and other activities that will generate affordable housing units 
for the Department.  Such credits held in reserve shall not be subject to disposition 
by public auction. 
 

E. Community Benefits 
 

Five percent (5%) of the cash payments, unless otherwise determined by 
the Commission, deposited by the Department for affordable housing credits 
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shall be transferred for purposes of supporting activities relating to 
educational, economic, political, social and cultural processes by which the 
general welfare and conditions of native Hawaiians are thereby improved 
and perpetuated. Under Act 141, the credits are transferable and can be 
applied anywhere within the same county in which the credits were earned, 
this same rule will apply to the ‘Community Benefits’ payments. 

 
F. Conditions of Awards and Transfers of Affordable Housing Credits 

 
Any agreement between the Department and a third party to transfer 
affordable housing credits shall be subject to the Department receiving the 
necessary number of credits from the respective county.  Developer shall be 
solely responsible to execute agreements with the respective county on the 
applicability and use of such credits. 
 


